
           

REGULAR MEETING & WORK SESSION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

July 13, 2021

ADDISON TREEHOUSE

14681 MIDWAY RD. SUITE 200, ADDISON, TX 75001
5:45 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION, WORK SESSION &

REGULAR MEETING
 

Notice is hereby given that the Addison City Council will conduct its REGULARLY
SCHEDULED MEETING on Tuesday, July 13, 2021 at the Addison TreeHouse
with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for members
of the public will be available using CDC recommended social distancing
measures. The Town will utilize telephone or videoconference public meetings to
facilitate public participation to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by avoiding
meetings that bring people into a group setting. Telephonic or videoconferencing
capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address the Council. Email
comments may also be submitted to: iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm the day
of the meeting. Members of the public are entitled to participate remotely via
Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant
ID: #. For more detailed instructions on how to participate in this meeting visit our
Agenda Page. The meeting will be live streamed on Addison's website
at: www.addisontexas.net.
           

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION



EXECUTIVE SESSION

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov.Code to conduct a private consultation with its
attorney pertaining to:   
  

Bigelow Arizona TX-344, Limited Partnership D/B/A Suites of America
and/or Budget Suites of America v. Town of Addison, Cause No.
DC-19-09630, 191st Judicial District, Dallas County District Court

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee, pertaining to: 
  

City Attorney
 

Reconvene in to Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to
consider action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session.
 

WORK SESSION
 

1. Present and Discuss the Council Calendar for August, September and
October, 2021.    

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Announcements and Acknowledgments Regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities
  

Proclamation: John H. Otstott  

Discussion of Meetings / Events
 

Public Comment
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter,
including items on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the
agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific
hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless



otherwise required by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council
Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior to the Public Comment
item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss
any item not listed on the agenda.  The Council may choose to place the item
on a future agenda.
 

Consent Agenda
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If
individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the
Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

2. Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 16, 2021 Special Council
Meeting.   

 

3. Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 22, 2021 City Council
Work Session and Regular Meeting.

 

4. Consider Action on a Resolution Discontinuing the City Council
Finance Committee.   

 

5. Consider Action on a Resolution Adopting the Town of Addison's
Strategic Pillars and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022.   

 

6. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Agreement Between the
Town of Addison and Dunaway Associates, LLC. for Professional
Engineering Services for Plat and Easement Digitization and
Mapping; and, Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the
Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $70,000.

 

Regular Items
 

7. Consider Action on a Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of an Airport
Improvement Program Grant Offer from the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT) Aviation Division in the Estimated Amount of
$8,060,300 for Design and Construction of Extensions of and
Improvements to Taxiway Bravo with Associated Improvements
Including a Vehicle Service Road; Designating TxDOT as the Town of
Addison's Agent for Receiving and Disbursing Funds;
Acknowledging that Addison will be Responsible for an Estimated
Contribution of $806,030; and, Authorizing the Execution of



Contribution of $806,030; and, Authorizing the Execution of
Documents Relative to the Acceptance of the Grant.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed
on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations).
Any decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.  

 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN
ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: ________________________________
TIME POSTED:  ________________________________
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________
 



   
Council Meeting 1.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss the Council Calendar for August, September and
October, 2021.    

BACKGROUND:
Staff is requesting direction from the City Council regarding Council meeting
dates for the months of August, September and October.  Attached are calendars
for these months for review and consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.

Attachments
Calendar - August, September, October 



August 2021 
 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 

Tax Rate Notice 

Posted on Website 

4 5 6 7 

Budget Workshop Budget Workshop 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

City Council Meeting TML Elected City 

Officials Orientation - 

Bastrop 

TML Elected City 

Officials Orientation - 

Bastrop 

15 16 

Last Day to Order an 

Election for Voter 

Approved Tax Rate 

17 18 19 20 21 

Planning & Zoning 

Commission Meeting 

22 23 24 25 

UDC Advisory and 

Community Meeting 

26 

Joint Meeting –   

Council & P&Z 

27 28 

City Council Meeting 

29 30 31 
    

       



September 2021 
 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

   
1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

Labor Day Special Meeting – 

Budget Public 

Hearing  

12 13 14 15 16 

Oktoberfest 

17 

Oktoberfest 

18 

Oktoberfest City Council Meeting 

– Adopt Budget and 

Tax Rate 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

Planning & Zoning 

Commission Meeting 

26 27 28 29 30 
  

City Council Meeting 

       



October 2021 
 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     
1 

First Day of 

Fiscal Year 2022 

2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

TML Conference & 

Exhibition - Houston 

TML Conference & 

Exhibition - Houston 

TML Conference &     

Exhibition - Houston 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

City Council Meeting 

17 18 

Fall Town Meeting 

19 20 21 22 23 

Planning & Zoning 

Commission Meeting 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

City Council Meeting 

31 
      

 



   
Council Meeting 2.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 16, 2021 Special Council
Meeting.   

BACKGROUND:
The minutes from the June 16, 2021 Special Council Meeting have been
prepared for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - June 16, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 16, 2021 City Council Special Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 

 

 

DRAFT 
SPECIAL MEETING & WORK SESSION 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

June 16, 2021 

ADDISON TREEHOUSE 
14681 MIDWAY RD., SUITE 200, ADDISON, TX 75001 

6:00 PM SPECIAL MEETING & WORK SESSION 

Notice was given that the Addison City Council would conduct a Special Meeting and Work 

Session on Wednesday, June 16, 2021, at the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City 

Council physically present. Limited seating for members of the public was available using CDC 

recommended social distancing measures.The meeting was live streamed on Addison's website at: 

www.addisontexas.net. 
 

City Council: Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla; Deputy Mayor Pro 

Tempore Paul Walden; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Lori Ward; 

Council Member Kathryn Wheeler; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 
 
 

 

Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Chow called the City Council to order 
 

 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Public Comment 
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on the agenda, except 

public hearings that are included on theagenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific 

hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required by law. To address the 

Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior to the Public Comment 

item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any actionor discuss any item not listed on the agenda. The 

Council may choose to place the item on future agenda. 
 

Regular Items 

http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 

June 16, 2021 City Council Special Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 

 

1. Present and Discuss the Town's Strategic Plan and Goal Setting for Fiscal Year 2022. 
 

The City Council has, in recent years, developed a Strategic Plan to provide direction and set 

priorities. Specific, measurable goals and priorities known as Pillars and Milestones are 

developed and revisited each year. These are adjusted as deemed appropriate by Council. 

Strategic Government Resources (SGR) has facilitated this annual review process with Council. 

The review included dividing the Council into small groups to discuss whether each Pillar was still 

relevant, determining whether progress is still being made on each Milestone and making 

adjustments or amendments as needed. Initiatives for the Milestones will be developed by Staff 

and will consist of projects that, when completed, help the Town achieve that specific Milestone. 

Recommendations were discussed by the entire Council with the following updates to Pillar One.  

All other Pillars remained the same. 
 

Pillar One 
 2021 2022 

Title Entrepreneurship and Business Hub Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business 

Milestone 

#1 

Economic Development focus on attracting 

and retaining entrepreneurship and target 

industries. 

Economic Development focus on attracting 

and retaining entrepreneurship, high-tech 
conferences, and Transit Oriented 

Development 

Milestone 

#2 

Review Town Ordinances and regulations 

to modernize them and facilitate 

redevelopment. 

DELETE 

Milestone 

#3 

Create channels for two-way 

communication with the business 

community. 

DELETE 

Milestone 

#2 

NEW Leverage the new Customs Facility to 

promote international travel use of the 

Airport 

Milestone 

#3 

NEW Leverage the use of the Airport to maximize 

business growth and expansion 

 
 

Pillar Two: Excellence in Asset Management 

Milestone: Implement the Asset Management Plan in accordance with the Asset 

Management Policy, utilizing information systems. 

 

Pillar Three: Excellence in Transportation Systems 

Milestone #1: Promote Silver Line Development 

Milestone #2: Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in acceptable 

condition and well-maintained. 

 

Pillar Four: Gold Standard in Customer Service 

Milestone: Promote and protect the Addison Way. 
 

Pillar Five: Gold Standard in Financial Health 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 16, 2021 City Council Special Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 

 

Milestone: Continue development and implementation of Long-Term Financial Plan. 
 

Pillar Six: Gold Standard in Public Safety 

Milestone: Maximize use of cutting-edge technology enhance public safety. 
 

Pillar Seven: Optimize Addison Brand 

Milestone: Define and promote Addison identify. 
 

A resolution approving the seven (7) Strategic Pillars and ten (10) Milestones for the 2022 Addison 

Strategic Plan is scheduled to be presented during the July 13th Council meeting for Council action. 
 

Adjourn Meeting 

 

The being no further business, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 
 

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   
Council Meeting 3.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the June 22, 2021 City Council Work
Session and Regular Meeting.

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the June 22, 2021 Council Executive Session, Work Session
and Regular Meeting have been prepared for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - June 22, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 10 

 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 

June 22, 2021 

 

Executive Session, Work Session & Regular Meeting 

6:00 p.m. 

 

Addison TreeHouse 

14681 Midway Rd., Addison, TX 75001 

 
The Addison City Council conducted its Regular Council Meeting on Tuesday, June 22, 2021, at 

the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for 

members of the public was available using CDC recommended social distancing measures. The 

Town utilized telephone and videoconferencing to facilitate participation in the meeting. Interested 

parties were able to make public comments and address the Council via emailed comments 

submitted to the City Secretary at iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm on the meeting day. 

Members of the public were also entitled to participate remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 

877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant ID: #. Detailed instructions on how to 

participate in this meeting were available on the Town’s website on the Agenda Page. The meeting 

was live streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net 
 

Present: Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla; Deputy Mayor Pro 

Tempore Paul Walden; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Lori Ward; 

Council Member Kathryn Wheeler; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 
 

Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to: Section 551. 072, Tex. 

Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property if 

deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the 

governmental body in negotiations with a third person, pertaining to: 

 

• DART Interlocal Agreement – Ground Lease 

mailto:iparker@addisontx.gov
http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 10 

 

Reconvene into Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, 

the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters 

discussed in Executive Session. 
 

Mayor Chow closed the Open Session to convene the City Council into Closed Executive Session 

at 6:03 p.m. 

 

Mayor Chow reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 6:35 p.m. No action was taken as 

a result of Executive Session. 
 
 

WORK SESSION 

 
1. Present and Discuss Non-Profit Grant Funding Presentations for Fiscal Year 2022. 

 

Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer, advised that at the request of Council, Non-Profit 

Organizations (NPOs) that applied for grant funding from the Town of Addison for Fiscal Year 

2022 were invited to make a five-minute presentation to the Council describing their organization’s 

mission and what they do to serve the Addison community. Each provided an application to Staff 

with their funding request. Presentations included information on their missions, histories, past 

and future projects, how they contribute to the Addison community, and how future grant funds 

would be used. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on non-profits was included. 

 

Representatives from each organization and fund amount are as follows: 

• Addison Arbor Foundation: Presenters - President Dr. Jay Ihrig, Vice President Barbara 

Pappas. 

• Addison Eagles Civil Air Patrol Squadron: Presenters - Jim Quinn, Shawn Norwood. 

• Cavanaugh Flight Museum: Presenters - Director of Special Projects Perry White, 

Assistant Museum Director Kevin Raulie. 

• Dallas Cat Lady: Presenter - Executive Director Leigh Sessler. 

• Steven A. Cohen Military Family at Metrocare Services: Presenter – Interim Clinic 

Director Chelsea Fiduccia, PhD. 

• Metrocrest Services: Presenter - Chief Operations Officer Nicole Binkley. 

• Outcry Theatre: Presenter - Marketing Director Jason Johnson-Spinos. 

• The Family Place: Presenters - Sr. Director of Community Collaborations and Partnerships 

Rhonda Lemons, BIPP Program Director Karicia Corum. 

• WaterTower Theatre: Presenter - Producing Artistic Director Shane Peterman. 

• Woven Health Clinic: Presenter – Executive Director Rigby. 

It was noted that the Council will make funding decisions during the budget process for Fiscal 

Year 2022. 

 

2. Present and Discuss the Proposed Issuance of 2021 General Obligation Bonds and 

2021 Taxable Refunding Bonds. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 10 

 

Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer, presented this item. He advised that since 2012, 

Addison voters have approved several bond programs to fund various projects throughout Town. 

Once voter approval is secured, the City Council is authorized to issue bonds to pay for projects. 

It was noted that the PowerPoint presentation presented during this meeting is organized slightly 

differently than the one attached in the Agenda Packet. City Manager Wes Pierson advised that a 

copy of the updated presentation my be obtained by requesting a copy from the City Secretary. 

 

The proposed 2021 General Obligation Bond issuance totals $16,095,000 and consists of the 

following: 

• $8,000,000, from the authorized $16,000,000 ($3,000,000 issued to date), from Proposition 

1 of the 2012 Bond Election for reconstruction of Midway Road. Council awarded a 

construction contract to Tiseo Construction at their December 8, 2020 Meeting. The 

project is currently under construction with an anticipated completion date in Fiscal Year 

2024; 

• $3,145,000, from the authorized $6,723,000 ($365,000 issued to date), from Proposition C 

of the 2019 Bond Election for parks and recreation improvements and facilities. Council 

approved a contract for design of locker room, pool, gymnasium and track improvements 

to the Addison Athletic Club at their June 9, 2020 Meeting. Design is nearing completion 

with construction anticipated to begin in September 2021 with an estimated construction 

timeline of 12-24 months; 

• $4,950,000, from the authorized $7,395,000 ($140,000 issued to date), from Proposition D 

of the 2019 Bond Election for improvements to existing municipal buildings. Council 

approved a contract for design of roof and heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 

(HVAC) improvements to the Addison Athletic Club at their June 9, 2020 Meeting. Design 

is nearing completion with construction anticipated to begin in September 2021 with an 

estimated construction timeline of 12-24 months. Additionally, Council approved a 

professional services contract for engineering and project management of Phase One 

facility projects at their April 13, 2021 Meeting. The Phase One projects include roofing, 

HVAC, and American with Disabilities Act (ADA) improvements on all Town facilities 

except the Addison Athletic Club (i.e., Town Hall, Service Center, Finance Building, etc.). 

It is anticipated that all Phase One projects will be completed by the end of Fiscal Year 

2022. 

Mr. Glickman added that the tax rate impact of the 2019 Bond Election, as provided to voters, was 

10.31 cents. He explained that when applied to the proposed 2021 bond issuance that would 

translate to 1.22 cents, however now it is anticipated to cost 1.06 cents as a result of significant 

positive market changes creating a savings of 13.4%. Additionally, he mentioned that late last 

week after the agenda was posted he received additional information from the Town's Financial 

Advisor that it is now feasible to refund the 2013 Certificates of Obligation Bonds that would 

increase total anticipated savings to approximately one-million dollars. 

 

Mr. Glickman reviewed the timeline for the bond issuance, noting that Council will consider an 

ordinance when the bonds are sold on August 10, 2021, and the proceeds should be received on 

September 14, 2021. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 10 

 

3. Present and Discuss Reauthorization of the Council Finance Committee and Potential 

Appointments. 
 

Bill Hawley, Director of Administrative Services, presented this item. He advised that the Finance 

Committee was created by Resolution on March 10, 2015. The stated purpose of the Committee 

is to assist the City Council in fulfilling its responsibilities pertaining to the Town's finances in 

accordance with the City Charter, Code of Ordinances, and applicable laws and regulations. 

 

The Finance Committee Bylaws require Council to review the Committee annually and determine 

if the Committee should be sunset or continue in fulfilling their responsibilities. If Council decides 

to continue the Committee, three Council members shall be appointed to the Committee. Mr. 

Hawley advised this agenda item is to facilitate discussion on whether to continue the Committee 

and if so, appointments to the Committee will then be discussed. 

 

Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore Walden opined the Council should sunset this Committee since the 

Committee’s work is redundant. He stated that having Council Members hold meetings with Town 

staff on matters that will be brought before the entire Council seems unnecessary and will save 

staff time and personnel costs. 

 

Council Member Willesen, who has been appointed to the Finance Committee in the past, 

expressed that he has benefited from having the extra insight into the Town’s financial matters. 

He added that in the absence of informational sessions in advance of Council meetings there may 

be longer discussions during the Council meetings. 

 

Council Member Braun, who has been appointed to the Finance Committee in the past, expressed 

that he has enjoyed his time on the Committee and feels it saves time during the Council meetings. 

He added however that he is okay with not having the Committee. 

 

Mayor Chow stated that he agrees the Committee should be discontinued, adding that it is every 

Council Member’s responsibility to be familiar with the finances. He added that any questions 

may be submitted to the City Manager in advance of the Council meetings. 

 

Other Council Members spoke in favor of discontinuing the Committee, noting it can always be 

reactivated if necessary. Council Member Ward expressed that the Town staff is very capable and 

commended Mr. Glickman for his presentation earlier in this meeting. 

 

City Manager Pierson reminded Council that the Committee was formed by Council action and if 

it is the desire of the Council to sunset it, then staff will bring back a Resolution effecting that 

change. 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities 

• Proclamation Recognizing Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce President Erin Carter 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 10 

 

 

Mayor Chow presented Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce President Erin Carter a Proclamation 

acknowledging and expressing appreciation for her service to the Town of Addison. Ms. Carter 

thanked and expressed her appreciation to the Town for working with the Chamber. 

 

Discussion of Events/Meetings 
 

Public Comment: The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on 

the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 

heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 

by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 

to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 

listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 

 

City Secretary Parker advised that no citizens had requested to address the City Council via 

telephonic means. 
 

Consent Agenda: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will 

be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will 

be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 

 

4. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the May 25, 2021 Council Work 

Session and Regular Meeting. 
 

5. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the June 8, 2021 Council Work Session 

and Regular Meeting. 
 

6. Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing John Crawford to Place 1 of the Board 

of Directors of the North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation and Affirming 

the Appointments of Steven Glickman and Shannon Hicks. 
 

7. Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing Paul Voelker, Mayor of the City of 

Richardson, as Primary Representative and Guillermo Quintanilla, Mayor Pro- 

Tempore of the Town of Addison, as the Alternate to the Aggregated Position of 

Representative to the Regional Transportation Council of the North Central Texas 

Council of Governments. 
 

8. Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing Council Liaisons for 2021-2022. 
 

Mayor Chow asked if there were any requests to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 

separate discussion. 

 

City Manager Pierson requested Item 7 be pulled due to the City Richardson not being ready to 

move forward with this appointment. Council Member Willesen requested Item 8 be pulled. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 10 

 

MOTION: Council Member Braun moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 4, 5, and 6 as 

submitted. Council Member Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

******* Consent Item 8 ******* 

 

Council Member Willesen advised he pulled Item 8 in order to request that in the future Council 

reconsider appointing at a future date Education and Airport Liaisons and the Finance 

Committee. The Education and Airport Liaison positions were recommended to be discontinued 

at the June 8th Council Meeting. The Council discussed the future of the Finance Committee 

earlier in this meeting 

 

MOTION: Council Member Willesen moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 8. Council 

Member Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Resolution No. R21-031: North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation Appointments 

Resolution No. R21-032: Council Liaison Appointments 2021-2022 
 

 
Regular Items 

 

9. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving a Concessionaire 

Agreement Between the Town of Addison and MD Circle Cafe, LLC for Food and 

Beverage and/or Recreation Rental Services at Addison Circle Park Pavilion, and 

Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement. 
 

Janna Tidwell, Director of Parks and Recreation, presented this item. She reviewed that the Parks, 

Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Master Plan identified park activation as a game-changing 

initiative and identified Addison Circle Park and the development that will occur North of the 

DART Silver Line as a transformative project for the Addison Parks system. The PROS plan 

identified that the northeast entrance to Addison Circle Park should be updated to include a food 

vendor or vendors. The Economic Development Plan and Special Events Strategic Plan also 

support the initiative. 

 

Ms. Tidwell advised that staff from Purchasing, Parks & Recreation, Special Events, Economic 

Development and General Services worked together to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) to 

solicit Concession Services for Addison Circle Park Kitchen and Pavilion. The RFP was issued on 

March 24, 2021, and two vendors submitted proposals. Staff reviewed the proposals, interviewed 

each of the respondents and scored the proposals by eight criteria e.g. completeness of proposal; 

days/hours of operations; products and services; concession experience; professional appearance, 

quality, character attributes; ability to meet licensing and insurance requirements; acceptable 

concession fee paid to the Town. 

 

Representatives from Parks & Recreation, Special Events and General Services scored the 

proposals and identified Kelcher Entertainment Group, doing business as MD Circle Cafe, LLC, 

as the most qualified vendor to provide concession services. Kelcher has experience working with 

municipalities to provide concession services, currently operates an Addison business, and has 

worked with staff during Special Events. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 10 

 

 

Ms. Tidwell reviewed details of the proposed agreement, including hours, payment methods, 

menu, equipment, staffing and permitting. She advised the target start date for service is July 27, 

2021. 

 

Discussion followed regarding how the vendor and Town will comply with Texas Alcohol and 

Beverage Commission laws. Ms. Tidwell advised that park attendees may not bring alcohol into 

the parks, but it may be sold in a park. Signage is required by each seller of alcohol indicating 

allowable area for consumption. 

 

It was noted this vendor should abide by the “Addison Way” in how it conducts business in a Town 

park. Ms. Tidwell advised that the restrooms in the area will continue to be maintained and secured 

by Town staff. 

 

MOTION: Mayor Pro-Tempore Quintanilla moved to approve. Council Member Ward seconded 

the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Resolution No. R21-033: MD Circle Café, LLC Concessionaire Agreement at Addison Circle 

Park Pavilion 

 

10. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a Meritorious 

Exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for the Addison Airport Customs 

and Border Protection Facility, Located at 4545 Jimmy Doolittle Drive, in Order to 

Exceed the Total Effective Area and the Maximum Allowable Logo Height for 

Attached Signs. Case MR2021-006. 
 

Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services, presented this item. He advised that construction 

for the new U.S. Customs and Border Protection Facility at the Addison Airport is nearing 

completion. A remaining task is the installation of site and building identification signage. To 

complete this process, Addison Airport staff is requesting a Meritorious Exception to the Town’s 

sign ordinance to install wall signage reflecting occupancy by Addison Airport and US Customs 

and Border Protection staff. With this project, Addison Airport staff submitted a sign permit 

application for four wall signs, which includes two Addison Airport signs and two U.S. Customs 

and Border Protection signs. One of each of these signs will be located on the western building 

façade facing the airfield and the eastern building façade facing the Addison Airport Toll Tunnel. 

 

Mr. Schmidt reviewed the locations and sizes of the existing signs and provided depictions. He 

advised the maximum permitted logo height is 33.75 inches per the Code of Ordinances. The 

existing signs with Town logos are 5 feet and 7 feet. In addition, the effective area for all four 

signs is 220 square feet, and the maximum permitted effective area is 200 square feet. 

 

Mr. Schmidt reviewed Code of Ordinance, Section 62-33 Meritorious Exceptions, which states 

that the Council may consider appeals on the basis that such regulations and/or standards will, by 

reason of exceptional circumstances or surroundings, constitute a practical difficulty or 

unnecessary hardship or on the basis that the proposed improvement although falling under the 

definition of a "sign," constitutes art that makes a positive contribution to the visual environment. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 10 

 

 

Mr. Schmidt advised that staff believes the hardship criteria of the Meritorious Exception 

requirement is met, based on the following considerations: 

1. The signs for this facility are setback over 150 feet from surrounding roadways and 

reducing the scale of the Town logo would result in lettering that would be difficult to see 

from Jimmy Doolittle Drive. On the airfield side of the project, it is equally important to 

have an appropriately sized sign to help visitors become oriented to their surroundings 

upon arrival. From an aesthetic standpoint, a much smaller sign would be poorly scaled to 

this building 

2. In addition to Addison Airport staff, this building is also occupied by a federal agency, US 

Customs and Border Protection, which requires its own dedication signage in accordance 

with federal standards. If this agency did not require signage, the proposed signs for this 

building would comply with the maximum effective area requirement. 

 
Mr. Schmidt advised that previously the Town has not applied the Town’s sign ordinance to the 

airfield facing signs that are not visible from the public right-of-way. He advised that staff supports 

continuation of this practice and advised that during the Unified Development Code (UDC) review 

a Special Sign District may be considered in December 2021. 

 

Council Member Braun spoke in favor of this item however added that these signs are not 

advertisements, they are way-finding signs. 

 

MOTION: Council Member Braun moved to approve. Council Member Willesen seconded the 

motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ordinance No. O21-23: Meritorious Exception Addison Airport Customs and Border Protection 

Facility located at 4545 Jimmy Doolittle Drive 

 

11. Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Interlocal 

Agreement Between the Town of Addison and Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART), 

for the Lease of Property Owned by DART at the Addison Transit Center for 

Inclusion in a Transit-Oriented Development to be Managed by the Town; 

Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement and Other Documents 

Including the Lease. 
 

Mayor Chow advised that this item was discussed in Executive Session this evening and called for 

Council action or additional discussion. Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore Walden requested that a 

summary of the lease be presented to inform our citizens. Mayor Chow called on the Town’s 

consultant, Phyllis Jarrell, City Centric Planning, LLC, to summarize of the Interlocal Agreement. 

Ms. Jarrell stated that the agreement provides that DART’s 5.5 acres at the Addison Transit Center 

may be included into the overall master development that would include the Town’s 13 acres. Ms. 

Jarrell reviewed that the Interlocal Agreement has a 99-year term with the base rent established 

using an appraisal process to include escalation and re-appraisal clauses. Per state statute, DART 

must receive market base rent for their properties. The agreement also includes provisions that 

would prevent some uses from being on DART’s property. There is a 5-year pre-development 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 10 

 

period which would give the master developer time to get financing for the development program 

and time to complete the Town’s permitting process before any rent payment to DART begins. 

Ms. Jarrell advised that the DART Board approved the agreement earlier in the evening at their 

June 22nd meeting. 

 

The Town’s Request for Proposal (RFP) is currently being advertised for solicitation of a master 

developer for the Town’s property with a July deadline. After receipt, review and approval of the 

RFPs, the Town will proceed to select a master developer. 

 

MOTION: Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore Walden moved to approve. Council Member Willesen 

seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Resolution No. R21-034: DART Interlocal Agreement for Property Lease at Transit Center 
 

12. Present, Discuss and Consider Action Providing Additional Funding for Metrocrest 

Services in Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 

Bill Hawley, Director of Administrative Services, presented this item. He reviewed that the Town 

supports Metrocrest Services through the annual Non-Profit Organization (NPO) funding process 

($66,120 in Fiscal Year 2021). These funds go toward a variety of programs for Addison residents 

such as education, job training, and senior related services. 

 

Mr. Hawley advised that due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Town provided additional funds to 

Metrocrest for a Residents Assistance Program (RAP) that provides rent and food assistance to 

qualifying Addison residents. In 2020, Council approved Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 

Security (CARES) Act funding to Metrocrest for the RAP in an amount up to $285,000 to be spent 

by December 31, 2020, as originally required by the CARES Act. Due to eligibility requirements 

on the funding, Metrocrest spent $180,934 of the award. In January 2021, Council designated 

$64,689 to continue the RAP. It was estimated that this funding would last for only a portion of 

2021, and Metrocrest would return to Council to request additional funding as needed. Through 

May 2021, Metrocrest has expended $52,027 of the 2021 RAP allocation leaving a balance of 

$12,662. Metrocrest anticipates the remaining balance to be expended on or before July 15, 2021. 

 

Mr. Hawley advised that Metrocrest expects the need for rent and food assistance for Addison 

residents to remain high throughout calendar 2021. Therefore, Metrocrest is requesting $72,000 

in funding, separate from and in addition to the annual Non-Profit Funding request, to assist with 

costs associated with providing assistance for the remainder of 2021. 

 

Metrocrest Services Chief Operating Office Nicole Binkley explained to the Council the 

continuing needs of Addison residents. Council Member Willesen asked if Ms. Binkley could 

provide any guidance or insight on whether the financial problems were leveling out, getting better, 

or staying the same so Council could gain understanding on what is anticipated over the next 12 

months. In response, she advised that with unemployment benefits being eliminated soon, there 

may be additional needs. There are also several first-time users of their services. 



Town of Addison, Texas 

June 22, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 10 

 

Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem Walden said that he has learned of many businesses needing employees 

and being unsuccessful with their hiring efforts. He opined that the problem is the COVID-19 

federal programs which rewards people for not working. He supports the Town providing annual 

grant funding but is not inclined to support this request. Council Member Wheeler asked City 

Manager Pierson what fund account would this request be paid from? City Manager Pierson 

responded if the Council would approve this, the funds would come from the General Fund fund 

balance. 

 

Mayor Chow stated he had a different perspective as he has participated in several Metrocrest 

programs and has seen their operation. Metrocrest does provide food, money to pay for utilities 

and rent for those impacted by the pandemic through no fault of their own. Mayor Chow informed 

Council he has volunteered to work and provide meals for Metrocrest. 

 

Council Member Willesen reviewed that the expenditures being made for these programs were 

$21,000+ monthly and he was struggling with that run rate. He also commented the Town could 

pay the total amount of grant funds with the new budget versus in two payments. Council Member 

Ward stated she supports Metrocrest 1000%, but she did not think it was prudent to take $72,000 

from the General Fund for this request. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Quintanilla asked City Manager Pierson to remind Council how much money was 

going to be saved with the bond sale. City Manager Pierson reported that the savings from the 

Refunding Bonds was estimated to be over $1M. However, not all those monies are in the General 

Fund some of it will come from the Drainage Fund. Mayor Pro-Tem Quintanilla recommended 

granting this request since funds are available without impacting the budget. 

 

Council Member Braun stated that Metrocrest provides important services to our citizens – they 

do not just give a hand-out, they give a hand-up. These funds are going directly to Addison 

residents, preventing negative social issues such as homelessness. There is still a possibility that 

the Town may receive reimbursement in the next round of federal funding. Council Member 

Wheeler spoke in favor of this funding request. 

 

MOTION: Council Member Braun moved to approve. Council Member Wheeler seconded the 

motion. Motion carried 4-3 with Deputy Mayor Pro-Tem Walden, Council Members Ward and 

Willesen voting against. 
 

Adjourn Meeting 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

Joe Chow, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   
Council Meeting 4.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Discontinuing the City Council Finance
Committee.   

BACKGROUND:
The Finance Committee (Committee) was created by Resolution on March 10,
2015.  Committee by-laws require Council to annually review whether the
Committee should be continued.  On June 22, 2021, Council discussed the
Committee and directed Staff to discontinue it.  This Resolution discontinues the
Committee.     

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.  

Attachments
Resolution - Discontinuation of the Finance Committee 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO.    

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISCONTINUATION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL FINANCE COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison City Council Finance Committee (Finance 

Committee) was created by the City Council in 2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee By-Laws require the City Council to annually 

determine whether to continue the Finance Committee’s existence; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined not to continue the existence of the Finance 

Committee during their June 22, 2021 Council Meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1. The Finance Committee is hereby discontinued. 
 

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, this the 13th day of July 2021. 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

By:    By:   
 

Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R21-   

 
Page 1 of 1 



   
Council Meeting 5.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Adopting the Town of Addison's Strategic
Pillars and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022.   

BACKGROUND:
Since 2016, the City Council has participated in an annual meeting on strategic
planning facilitated by Strategic Government Resources (SGR).  At the meeting
held on June 16, 2021, Council reviewed and updated the Strategic Pillars for
Fiscal Year 2022.  There was one change made to the Strategic Pillars from
Fiscal Year 2021.  Pillar 1 was changed from  Entrepreneurship and Business
Hub to Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business.  The Strategic Pillars for
Fiscal Year 2022 are:
  

Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business
Excellence is Asset Management
Excellence in Transportation Systems
Gold Standard in Customer Service
Gold Standard in Financial Health
Gold Standard in Public Safety
Optimize Addison Brand

Council also identified 10 priority Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022.  A complete
list of the Milestones is included in Exhibit A of the Resolution.  SGR's full report
is also attached.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.  

Attachments
Resolution - Adopting Strategic Pillars and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022 
Report - June 16, 2021 Council Special Meeting 



RESOLUTIONNO. Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS APPROVING SEVEN STRATEGIC PILLARS AND TEN 
MILESTONES OF THE ADDISON STRATEGIC PLAN AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council met in a special work session on June 16, 2021 to review 
and revise the components of the Town’s Strategic Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the seven Strategic Pillars and ten Milestones have been identified to 
develop a cohesive vision of the future that creates excitement and commitment for the Town 
of Addison; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the Council’s discussion, the City Council desires to adopt 
amendments to the Strategic Pillars and Milestones components of the Strategic Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The special meeting results, including the seven Strategic Pillars and the 
ten Milestones, attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein, are hereby approved. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas this  the 13th day of July 2021. 

Joe Chow, Mayor 

ATTEST:        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________ ______________________________ 
Irma Parker, City Secretary              Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



RESOLUTIONNO. EXHIBIT A – Page 2 

EXHIBIT A 

Strategic Plan for Fiscal Year 2022 

Pillar One: Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business 
Milestone 1: Economic Development focus on attracting and retaining entrepreneurship, high-tech 
conferences, and Transit Oriented Development.   
Milestone 2: Leverage the new Customs Facility to promote international travel use of the Airport. 
Milestone 3: Leverage the use of the Airport to maximize business growth and expansion. 

Pillar Two:  Excellence in Asset Management 
Milestone: Implement the Asset Management Plan in accordance with the Asset Management Policy, 
utilizing information systems. 

Pillar Three: Excellence in Transportation Systems 
Milestone 1: Promote Silver Line Development. 
Milestone 2: Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in acceptable condition and well-
maintained. 

Pillar Four: Gold Standard in Customer Service 
Milestone: Promote and protect Addison Way. 

Pillar Five: Gold Standard in Financial Health 
Milestone: Continue development and implementation of Long-Term Financial Plan. 

Pillar Six: Gold Standard in Public Safety 
Milestone: Maximize use of cutting-edge technology to enhance public safety. 

Pillar Seven: Optimize Addison Brand 
Milestone: Define and promote Addison Identity. 



1  

 
 

 

Council Report 

Addison, Texas 

June 28, 2021 
 

The Addison City Council held a Special Council meeting on Wednesday, June 16, 2021, to review the 

Council’s Strategic Vision and to make updates as needed. The Mayor, Council, City Manager, and key 

staff were in attendance. The retreat was facilitated by Mike Mowery, President of Leadership 

Development for Strategic Government Resources (SGR). 

Prior to the retreat, SGR conducted phone interviews with each Council member. The purpose of the 

interviews was to give the Council members the opportunity to share their views on the progress that 

the Town has made on its Strategic Vision and to ascertain if Council members felt the need to make 

significant changes to the current Strategic Vision. 

Structure of the Strategic Vision 

The City Council builds a Strategic Vision using three, interconnected levels of objectives (each level is 

more defined than the previous). The first level is for Council to create Strategic Pillars representing 

their top priorities. The second level is for Council to create specific Milestones for each Strategic Pillar. 

Council’s Strategic Pillars and Milestones answer the question of, “Where are we going in the future?” 

The third level is the development of specific Initiatives for each Milestone. Initiatives are developed by 

Staff and consist of projects or programs that, when completed, help the Town achieve specific 

Milestones. The completion of Milestones in turn lead to achieving the Strategic Pillars and ultimately 

the Strategic Vision. 

Cycle of Strategic Visioning 

During the retreat, SGR presented an overview of the Cycle of Strategic Visioning. This allowed the 

Council to identify the key steps that had been taken in the previous year toward the fulfillment of the 

vision and to frame the discussions in terms of the process creating a Strategic Vision. 

A diagram of the Strategic Visioning Cycle follows on the next page. 



2  

 

Staff 
Adjusts 

 

Community 
Input 

  
 

CC 
Evaluates 

Staff Input 

 

  
 

Staff 
Executes 

CC 
Envisions 

 

  
CC Affirms Staff Plans 

 
 

 

Changes to Pillars and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022 
 

During the June 16, 2021 Special Meeting, Council reviewed the current Strategic Pillars and Milestones. 

After careful discussion and consideration, Council requested that a change be made to the wording of 

Pillar One to read: “Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business.” All other Pillars remained the same. 

Some changes were also made to the Milestones under Pillar One. Milestone 1 was reworded from 
Entrepreneurship and Business Hub to Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business.  Milestones 2 and 3 

were eliminated. Two new Milestones were added. These changes are reflected below: 

Pillar One: Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business 

Milestone 1: Economic Development focus on attracting and retaining entrepreneurship, high-tech 

conferences, and Transit Oriented Development. 

Milestone 2: Review Town Ordinances and regulations to modernize them and facilitate redevelopment. 

Milestone 3: Create channels for two-way communication with the business community. 

Milestone 2: Leverage the new Customs Facility to promote international travel use of the Airport. 

Milestone 3: Leverage the use of the Airport to maximize business growth and expansion. 

The following revised Pillars and Milestones will be brought forward for Council adoption prior to the 

beginning of Fiscal Year 2022. 

2022 Strategic Pillars and Milestones 

Pillar One: Innovative in Entrepreneurship and Business 

Milestone 1: Economic Development focus on attracting and retaining entrepreneurship, high-tech 

conferences, and Transit Oriented Development. 

Milestone 2: Leverage the new Customs Facility to promote international travel use of the Airport. 



3  

Milestone 3: Leverage the use of the Airport to maximize business growth and expansion. 

Pillar Two: Excellence in Asset Management 

Milestone: Implement the Asset Management Plan in accordance with the Asset Management Policy, 

utilizing information systems. 

Pillar Three: Excellence in Transportation Systems 

Milestone 1: Promote Silver Line Development. 

Milestone 2: Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in acceptable condition and well- 

maintained. 

Pillar Four: Gold Standard in Customer Service 

Milestone: Promote and protect Addison Way. 

Pillar Five: Gold Standard in Financial Health 

Milestone: Continue development and implementation of Long-Term Financial Plan. 

Pillar Six: Gold Standard in Public Safety 

Milestone: Maximize use of cutting-edge technology to enhance public safety. 

Pillar Seven: Optimize Addison Brand 

Milestone: Define and promote Addison Identity. 



   
Council Meeting 6.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Department: Information Technology
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Agreement Between the
Town of Addison and Dunaway Associates, LLC. for Professional
Engineering Services for Plat and Easement Digitization and Mapping; and,
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to
Exceed $70,000.

BACKGROUND:
The Town has accumulated a large quantity of paper construction
documents over the past 30+ years.  To preserve these drawings, increase
accessibility to such data, and to reclaim the space used to store these files, the
Town implemented a Digital Plan Room Pilot Project (Project) in 2020.  For the
Project, the Town selected Dunaway Associates (Dunaway) based on their
submittal in response to the Town's Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for
Professional Services (RFQ 17-180) .  This RFQ identified various Professional
Services providers that were place on an approved list from which Staff is able to
select when Professional Services are needed.  The Pilot Project was focused on
digitizing and linking as-builts, plat, easement, and scanning, mapping, and
linking plan-sheets to the Town's Geographical Information System. The Pilot
Project was successfully completed in April of 2021.  

The Town subsequently requested Dunaway to submit a proposal for a 2nd
phase of the Project where Dunaway is to scan, catalog, map, and link plan
sheets, plan sets, plats, and easements.  If approved, this phase of the Project is
anticipated to begin in August of 2021 and take 6 months to complete.  This
proposed Project is budgeted in the Storm Water and Utilities Projects Fund and
is below the budgeted amount.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Agreement with Dunaway Associates for Digital Plan Room
Services 





Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 1 of 37 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ADDISON AND 

DUNAWAY ASSOCIATES LLC, FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 

SERVICES FOR PLAT AND EASEMENT DIGITIZING AND MAPPING IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $70,000.00, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1. The Agreement between the Town of Addison and Dunaway Associates 

LLC, for professional engineering plat and easement digitizing and mapping in an amount not to 

exceed $70,000.00, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby 

approved.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 

 

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas on this the 13th day of JULY 2021. 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

 

_____________________________________  

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_____________________________ _____________________________________  

Irma Parker, City Secretary  City Attorney 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 2 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 3 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 4 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 5 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 6 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 7 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 8 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 9 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 10 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 11 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 12 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 13 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 14 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 15 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 16 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 17 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 18 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 19 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 20 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 21 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 22 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 23 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 24 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 25 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 26 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 27 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 28 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 29 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 30 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 31 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 32 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 33 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 34 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 35 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 36 of 37 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 37 of 37 

 

 



   
Council Meeting 7.           
Meeting Date: 07/13/2021  

Department: Airport
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems
Milestones: Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in an

acceptable condition and well maintained

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of an Airport
Improvement Program Grant Offer from the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT) Aviation Division in the Estimated Amount of
$8,060,300 for Design and Construction of Extensions of and
Improvements to Taxiway Bravo with Associated Improvements Including
a Vehicle Service Road; Designating TxDOT as the Town of Addison's
Agent for Receiving and Disbursing Funds; Acknowledging that Addison
will be Responsible for an Estimated Contribution of $806,030; and,
Authorizing the Execution of Documents Relative to the Acceptance of the
Grant.

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this item is to authorize acceptance of an Airport Improvement
Program (AIP) grant offer from the Texas Department of Transportation
(TxDOT) in the total amount of $8,060,300 for both design and a first
construction phase for extensions of Taxiway Bravo on the west side of the
airport.

Addison Airport has a single runway served by a full-length parallel taxiway
(Taxiway Alpha) east of the runway and a partial parallel taxiway (Taxiway
Bravo) west of the runway. The proposed extension of Taxiway Bravo to the
north is contemplated in the 2016 Addison Airport Master Plan and is included in
TxDOT's current Aviation Capital Improvement Program. The extension of the
taxiway will provide runway and taxiway access to a 4.2-acre parcel of land on
the west side of the airport and facilitate aeronautical development of that land.
Taxiway Bravo will also be extended at its south end (where it presently
terminates at Taxiway Charlie) to join with the south end of the runway. The
proposed project additionally includes construction of a vehicle service road west
of Taxiway Bravo, which would enable ground vehicles to traverse the west side
of the airport without the need to obtain clearance from the Air Traffic Control
Tower to use Taxiway Bravo (which is presently the only option).

The design phase of the taxiway extension and associated scope elements



is estimated to cost $805,000 and the Town is required to commit 10% of the
estimated design cost, or $80,500, which is the amount that was budgeted. The
design phase includes a preliminary engineering report (PER) for the
eventual extension of Taxiway Bravo to become a full-length parallel taxiway.
The design phase also includes engineering and design for the Taxiway Bravo
and Golf extensions, the extension of Taxiway Bravo at the south end to connect
to the runway, the west side service road (vehicle access road), and taxiway
lighting improvements. Funds for this expense have been budgeted in the Airport
Capital Projects Fund. The design phase of the project will receive grant funding
in the current fiscal year (Fiscal Year 2021) and will require Addison to provide
the matching funds of $80,500 to TxDOT before the project proceeds.
 
The first construction phase of the Taxiway Bravo extensions and associated
improvements is estimated to cost $7,255,300. The Town will be required to
commit matching funds for this project estimated to total $1,414,770 including a
10% matching share of $553,220 for the taxiway improvements and a 50%
matching share of $861,550 for construction of the west vehicle service
road. The 50% matching share for the service road is a TxDOT requirement, not
a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) requirement; under FAA standards, the
road is eligible for a 90% grant share, especially since it is a safety
enhancement. Matching funds for this first construction phase will be required to
be provided to TxDOT only after bids for the project are received. Funding for
this phase of the project is planned for Fiscal Year 2022 and will be included in
the proposed budget for the Airport Capital Projects Fund.

After the PER in the design phase of the project is complete, staff will discuss the
level of funding for the vehicle service road with TxDOT.  If TxDOT does not
agree that the west side service road should be funded at 90%, with a local
matching share of 10%, the Town will decide whether to commit the additional
40% or if the roadway should be eliminated from the project. Once the PER is
complete, design will begin on elements of the extension of Taxiway Bravo
northwards from where it currently ends (at Taxiway Foxtrot) to Taxiway Golf,
extending Taxiway Golf west from the runway to join the new extension of
Taxiway Bravo, extending Taxiway Bravo at its south end to connect to the south
end of the runway, and design of a west side service road west of Taxiway
Bravo. An exhibit showing the project elements is attached.

Award of the design grant has been previously approved by the Texas
Transportation Committee (TTC). Award of the grant funding the first phase of
construction will be considered on a future TTC meeting agenda (in Fiscal Year
2022, after TxDOT receives grant funding allocations from FAA). The attached
resolution is required before the item can be placed on that agenda. The
resolution commits the 10% local match and names the Texas Department of
Transportation as the Town's agent for the purposes of applying for, receiving,
and disbursing all funds for this project. TxDOT will also be responsible for



and disbursing all funds for this project. TxDOT will also be responsible for
negotiating the design fee with the Engineer of Record selected by the staff
committee.

At this time, there are three phases expected with this project.  Phase one
includes construction of the Taxiway Bravo extensions and associated
improvements, phase two is an extension of Taxiway Bravo to the north end of
the runway, and phase three covers the reconstruction and relocation of the
existing portion of Taxiway Bravo which will accommodate larger airplanes.  The
implementation of phases two and three is largely dependent upon available
funding.  Once the PER has been completed there will be more clarity on
anticipated construction costs and schedules for subsequent phases.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Taxiway Bravo Grant Acceptance 
Taxiway Bravo Improvements - Map 
Phase 1 Construction Cost Estimates 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R21-___         Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R21-_______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF AN AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

(AIP) GRANT OFFER FROM THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION (TXDOT) AVIATION DIVISION IN THE ESTIMATED 

AMOUNT OF $8,060,300.00 FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF 

EXTENSIONS OF AND IMPROVEMENTS TO TAXIWAY BRAVO WITH 

ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDING A VEHICLE SERVICE ROAD; 

DESIGNATING TXDOT AS THE TOWN OF ADDISON’S AGENT FOR 

RECEIVING AND DISBURSING FUNDS; ACKNOWLEDGING THAT ADDISON 

WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR AN ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTION OF 

$806,030.00; AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS 

RELATIVE TO THE ACCEPTANCE OF SUCH GRANT AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “Town”) intends to make certain 

improvements to the Addison Airport; and 

 

WHEREAS, the general description of the project is described as: engineering, design, 

and construction to extend the west parallel Taxiway Bravo south to connect to the south end 

of the runway and north to Taxiway Golf; extend Taxiway Golf west of the runway to connect 

to Taxiway Bravo; construct a west side airfield service road; install medium intensity taxiway 

lights; and construct drainage improvements for the taxiway extensions and service road 

(collectively, the “Improvements”) at Addison Airport; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town intends to request financial assistance from the Texas 

Department of Transportation for these Improvements; and 

 

WHEREAS, project costs are estimated to be $8,060,300.00, and the Town will be 

responsible for at least 10% of the total project cost, currently estimated to be $806,030.00; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town names the Texas Department of Transportation as its agent for 

the purposes of applying for, receiving and disbursing all funds for these Improvements and for 

the administration of contracts necessary for the implementation of these Improvements; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated as if 

fully set forth herein. 
 

SECTION 2.  The Town of Addison names the Texas Department of Transportation as its 

agent for the purposes of applying for, receiving and disbursing all funds for these Improvements 

and for the administration of contracts necessary for the implementation of these Improvements.  

 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R21-___         Page 2 of 2 

 

SECTION 3.  The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager or his designee to 

accept an Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant for the specified Improvements. The City 

Manager is hereby authorized to administer to all matters relating to such grant and to execute all 

necessary documents relative to the acceptance of such grant. 

 

SECTION 4.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 13th day of JULY 2021. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary City Attorney 
 

 





AVIATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM Texas Department of Transportation -- Aviation Division

Locations, Projects, and Costs June 10, 2021
FEDERAL & STATE FY 2022 Federal FY 2022 (October 2021 - September 2022)/State FY 2022 (September 2021 - August 2022)

City &
Airport

Project Status &
Description

Project Costs
Total Federal State Local

 ADDISON PENDING
DALLAS  Project Status:

Construct west airfield service road (4,200' x 12') 0 861,550861,5501,723,100
Construct draingage improvements for west side service road 0 66,970602,730669,700
Construct TXY "B" (PCC DW-90) 35' x 1,300' N, 35' x 500' S 0 216,2701,946,4302,162,700
Extend TXY "G" (PCC DW-90) 50' x 475' 0 84,410759,690844,100
Contingency 0 89,300803,700893,000
Install MITL TXY "B" 4,400 LF 0 33,490301,410334,900
Install MITL edge lights/guardlights/signage on 5 cross-txys (2,000 lf) 0 34,880313,920348,800
Construction Engineering Services 0 27,900251,100279,000

$ 5,840,530 $ 0 $ 1,414,770$ 7,255,300Project Totals:

Page 1 of 1


	Agenda
	AI_3950_City Council Meeting Calendar_  August, Sept, October
	    Calendar - August, September, October
	AI_3981_Minutes - June 16, 2021 Strategic Planning Retreat
	    Minutes - June 16, 2021
	AI_3979_Minutes - June 22, 2021
	    Minutes - June 22, 2021
	AI_3994_Finance Committee Discontinuation 
	    Resolution - Discontinuation of the Finance Committee
	AI_3995_Adopting Strategic Pillars and Milestones for FY2022
	    Resolution - Adopting Strategic Pillars and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2022
	RESOLUTION NO.
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:
	Strategic Plan for Fiscal Year 2022


	    Report - June 16, 2021 Council Special Meeting
	AI_3960_GIS Digital Plan Room Services
	    Resolution - Agreement with Dunaway Associates for Digital Plan Room Services
	AI_3988_Grant Acceptance for Taxiway Bravo PER, Design, and Phase 1 Construction
	    Resolution - Taxiway Bravo Grant Acceptance
	    Taxiway Bravo Improvements - Map
	    Phase 1 Construction Cost Estimates

